
The purpose of this amendment is to address questions posed by suppliers 
 

1. Previously the lead government agency was required to enter into the financial agreement with 
PWSGC directly, where that lead government agency then entered into a separate sub-contract 
with the Lead Bidder to complete the work.  Can the Lead Bidder enter into an agreement 
directly with PWSGC?   
 
a. For successful proposals, PWGSC or the Lead Government Department, depending on 

contracting delegations, will enter into a contract with the Lead Bidder.  
 

2. What kind of information is required under "operational feasibility" and how is this different 
from the facilities and personnel description? 
 
a. For this CFP, “operational feasibility” refers to the ability of the end-user to operationalize 

the proposed outcome presented in the submission. To demonstrate “operational 
feasibility”, Bidders need to, at a minimum, describe how well the proposed outcome will 
work in an organization (including adequate controls, efficiency and reliability) and how the 
knowledge or S&T can enhance operations in public safety or security.  For additional 
information, see the Bidder’s Guidebook 2016. 

 
3. One of the primary requirements is a government entity lead partner to drive technology pilots. 

Is there a location where I can see what government agencies have applied for?  
  

a. Neither DRDC CSS nor PWGSC track this type of information. For this CFP, partner 
requirements must be satisfied before the close of the CFP.  Note that the Concierge Service 
from National Research Council Canada assists small and medium-sized enterprises in 
navigating the many available innovation resources and support programs offered by the 
government (for additional information visit: http://www.nrc-
cnrc.gc.ca/eng/news/releases/2013/concierge_backgrounder.html). 

 
4. When completing the Work Plan, the template requires: Phase and task of description, 

deliverable, performed by, total estimated cost and start and end date.   
 

i. How many tasks, or perhaps what level of detail would you like in documenting each task or 
task list?   
 

a. A Work Plan should incorporate milestones and deliverables with adequate detail to 
measure progress - which includes, at a minimum, identification of key tasks, their duration, 
and identification of the partner leading the task. 
 

ii. Performed by:  Please confirm do you require the Partner taking the lead responsibility? 
Position title? Name of Individual?   
 

a. Adequate detail is required for the Work Plan.  For key tasks, it is recommended that as 
much information as possible be provided as to who is performing a task.  This will allow 
Bidders to reference the Work Plan when responding to criterion 3. b) of the point-rated 
evaluation  criteria that relates to key personnel. 

 

http://www.nrc-cnrc.gc.ca/eng/news/releases/2013/concierge_backgrounder.html
http://www.nrc-cnrc.gc.ca/eng/news/releases/2013/concierge_backgrounder.html


5. We have identified the need for an Intersectional Advisory Committee which consists of lead 
personnel from Federal, Academic and Industry Partners as well as several key 
stakeholders.  This is different than a board of directors.  Please advise which Board of 
Governance you would like described and where would be the best location.   

 
a. Some partners will be an entity with a Board of Directors – and a list of the corresponding 

members will need to be provided.  If applicable, this list will need to be appended (uploaded) 
to the supplemental information section at the end of the submission process.   

b. Accordingly, a list of members for committees/boards that are specifically created for purposes 
of a proposal is not required. However, information about such committees/boards may add 
value to sections of the point-rated evaluation criteria (e.g., Scientific or Technical Merit or Work 
Plan sections).  
 

6. As Identified Annex B7. Point 3 Project Manager and Key Personnel....that the Lead Bidder 
should demonstrate: 

i.  that the identified Project Manager has experience managing projects that are 
commensurate."... 

Please confirm who the subject of this question is meant to be or perhaps the level of specificity 
you require?  Is it the name of the individual hired to manage the project, or the Research Group 
Leading the Project, or Lead Lab? Can you confirm it is NOT the Project Lead or Federal Partner? 

 
a. For this CFP, the Project Manager is the individual tasked with applying the necessary 

knowledge, skills, tools, and techniques to project activities to meet the project requirements.  
Accordingly, the role and responsibility of the Project Manager is distinct from that of the 
Project Lead or government partner.   

 
ii. that key members of the proposed project team possess relevant experience"  

-Please confirm the level of specificity of the key members of the proposed project.  
 

a. Enough detail should be provided to allow reviewers to ascertain the commensurability of key 
members’ relevant experience with the demands of the current proposal.  

 
7. Re: Annex L – can you confirm that partners do NOT have to complete Annex L if they aren't 

asking for money from the call.  
 

a. The Lead Bidder and all partner organizations who would be a contractor on any contract 
resulting from the CFP must provide the required certifications and additional information to 
be awarded a contract. 
 

8. We have small partners that we have MOUs between. Each partner is offering small amounts of 
in-kind contributions to the project. Because they are connected to us via an MOU, can we 
count their in kind contributions as in-kind from us? Please confirm that this is fine. 
 

a. The in-kind contribution may be presented in any manner (i.e., total or segmented amounts) in 
the proposal. However, if a proposal is selected, co-investment contribution information must 
be supported by detailed calculations, explaining all proposed inputs and valuations in the 
project implementation phase. 
 



9. What is the total percentage of overhead that can be claimed against the project by the Lead 
Bidder? 

 
a. This CFP requires overhead (indirect costs) to be itemized and therefore, an attribution by 

percentage is not acceptable.  PWGSC will work with successful Bidders to review costing 
calculations.  

 
10. The Gantt Chart is mandatory this call, however there’s no section in the tool to officially upload 

one. Where do we load the Gantt chart? 
 

a. To upload a Gantt chart, a Bidder is required to press the corresponding “Edit” action button 
to activate the function that allows a document to be attached to the submission.  

 
11. Regarding the Board of Directors list: 

 
i. If you already have a CSSP project a contract in place and supplied a Board of Directors list 

before, do you need to provide it again? 
 

a. Yes, a list is required for each proposal to ensure that an up to date list of Board of Directors 
is provided to PWGSC. 

 
ii. Does this apply to ALL partners? E.g., Sub-contractors too, or just the main partners? 

 
a. The requirement to list the member of a Board of Directors applies to the main partners 

listed in a proposal. 
 

12. Is it necessary to receive Director General level signature or is it possible to proceed with the 
signature of implicated managers and to wait for acceptance of the proposal and negotiation of 
the project charter to obtain the higher-level signature? 

 
a. To be considered for this CFP, partner signatures must be at the Director General level or 

higher.  Signatures at the director and manager levels will not be deemed acceptable.  
 

13. If the Lead Bidder is an academic institution, do I need to identify procurement requirements for 
them?   

 
a. The CFP is a competitive process managed by PWGSC that results in contract awards for 

successful Bidders.  Accordingly, the Bidder is not required to identify additional 
procurement requirements. 

 
 

14. The template for the Annex D: Partner Signature Form on the Fluid Review is an excel file. Is it 
acceptable to submit the completed form in a PDF format?  

 
a. Yes, it is acceptable to submit the Partner Signature Form in PDF format.  

 



15.  What is the appropriate place to include biographical information (e.g., resumes) to highlight 
and validate our team's subject matter expertise and previous work on the S&T challenge that 
our application addresses?  

 
a. Relevant experience and qualifications of key member of the project team are to be included 

in the response to criterion 3.b) of the point-rated evaluation criteria.  Additional 
biographical information (e.g. resumes) will not be accepted.  

 
16.  If our proposal gets funded, will the project begin from this FY (FY2016-2018) or next FY 

(FY2017-2019)?  
 

a. If funded, projects are to begin this Fiscal Year (2016-17). 
 

17.  According to the guideline, we need to select only one challenge. If we would like to send you 
some reference documents to support other challenges, is the “Operational Support Letters” 
section the best place to specify and attach related documents? 
 

a. A proposal must align with one (1) primary S&T challenge. It is the Lead Bidder’s 
responsibility to identify and describe the alignment with that challenge. The evaluation will 
be based on the primary S&T challenge identified under the mandatory evaluation criterion.  
Additional S&T challenges can be addressed in the content (work plan and scope) of the 
proposal; however, the evaluation will be based on the primary S&T challenge identified. The 
Proposal Selection Committee considers the distribution of investments across the S&T 
challenges including value for money. Where a proposal addresses multiple S&T challenges, 
the proposal may be a greater priority for DRDC CSS than a proposal that addresses one 
challenge. Canada is not expecting many proposals to address multiple challenges.   

b. Note that Lead Bidders may submit multiple proposals for different challenges. All proposals 
will be evaluated independently against the primary S&T challenge identified in each. 
However, if multiple proposals are accepted and Canada views that there is overlap between 
them, Canada may ask the Lead Bidder of each overlapping proposal to combine them. 

 
18. Regarding the Lead Bidder and partner organizations – can partner organizations be from the 

same government department, but different Sectors?  Or do partners have to be from 
completely different organizations? 

 
a. The requirement is that all proposals must have a minimum of two partner organizations (see 

section 3.3.2 of the Bidder`s Guidebook 2016) – therefore, the organizations need to be 
different.  

 
19. How do I determine if my proposal is “classified”? 

 
a. Proposals are to be deemed classified if they contain information related to the national 

interest that may qualify for an exemption or exclusion under the Access to Information Act 
or Privacy Act and the compromise of which would reasonably be expected to cause injury 
the national interest (definition from the Supply Manual). It is expected that the majority of 
proposals will not qualify for the exemption or exclusion and they will therefore be submitted 
as unclassified proposals. 



20.  Do submissions have to be made only by the Lead Bidder and not me, private sector partner? 
 

a. As per item 3 of the certifications required for submitting a proposal, the individual 
submitting the proposal need to be an authorized signing officer of the Lead Bidder and have 
the authority to: a) submit the proposal, and b) act as the lead contact for the purposes of 
this CFP (see section 5.1 of the Bidder’s Guidebook 2016).  

 
21. How is the co-investment contribution evaluated? 

 
a. The co-investment contribution is evaluated according to the following example:  

 

Sample values are provided below as an example: 

Total Project Value:           $1,000,000 
CSSP Funds Requested:      $500,000 
In-Kind Contribution:          $100,000 
Cash Contribution:      $400,000 
 

The total co-investment contribution rating is 12 points and the corresponding calculation would be: 

i. Co-investment Contribution to Total Project Value (in-kind + cash)  
 
Total Project Value:             $1,000,000 
Co-Investment Contribution:      $500,000 
($500,000 / $1,000,000) x 100 = 50 % 
50 % = 4 points  
 

ii. Percentage of Cash Co-Investment to CSSP Funds Requested 
 
CSSP Funds Requested:             $500,000 
Cash Contribution:             $400,000 
($400,000 / $500,000) x 100 = 80 % 
80 % = 8 points  

iii. Total Co-Investment Contribution  
 
Co-investment Contribution to Total Project Value + Percentage of Cash Co-Investment to CSSP 
Funds Requested = Total Co-Investment Contribution  

4 + 8 = 12 points 


